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Preface

Conservation Areas

'A Conservation Area is an area of special architectural or historic interest, the
character and appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.’

(Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990).

The Council is responsible for deciding whether an area should be designated as a
Conservation Area, following extensive research and consultation with people living
in and owning property in the area.

We have a duty to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of each
Conservation Area, under planning laws and our own policies.

The Council as a VLocal Pl anning Authority is
proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area, which are

Conservation Areasodo (Section 71 of t ke Act) .
statutory duty.

Extra protection
In some cases there is extra Protection for Conservation Areas.

An Article 4(1) or 4(2) Direction can give extra protection to certain Conservation
Areas. This means that in these areas even minor alterations, for example
constructing a porch, replacing windows or re-roofing could require planning
permission.

For this | evel of protection these Conservati
terms of character and interest.

There is no Article 4 Direction in place at Church Brow.
Conservation Area Appraisal

The Appraisal is not intended to be comprehensive; the omission of any building,
feature or space should not be taken to imply that it is of no interest.

The Appraisal should be read in conjunction with the adopted South Ribble Borough
Local Plan (Adopted February 2000) Policy 15, National Planning Policy Framework,
Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the emerging Local Plan.

Background: Walton-le-Dale

An ancient village situated in close proximity to the Rivers Ribble and Darwen. The
name of Walton-le-Dale appears more than once in most history books. Julius, in his
quest to expand the Roman Empire, sent numerous battalions into the north of
England, including Walton-le-Dale. An AD 1140 charter to Henry de Lacy of
Blackburn gave reference to St Leonard's Parish Church in Walton-le-Dale. The
church tower is typically 16™ century in style, with stepped corner buttresses ground
from limestone.

The church of St Leonard, situated on an eminence to the east of the town, was
originally erected in the 11th Century. The earliest portions of the present building are
the Perpendicular chancel and tower, the nave having been rebuilt in 1798, while the
transepts were erected in 1816. There are a number of interesting old brasses and
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monuments. Cotton-spinning is carried on, and there are market gardens in the
vicinity. Roman remains have been found here, and there was perhaps a roadside
post on the site. The manor of Walton was granted by Henry de Lacy about 1130 to
Robert Banastre. It afterwards passed by marriage to the Langtons, and about 1592
to the Hoghtons of Hoghton.

Walton was the principal scene of the great battle of Preston, fought on the 17
August 1648 between Cromwell and the duke of Hamilton.

In 1701 the duke of Norfolk, the earl of Derwent water and other Jacobites
incorporated the town by the style of the mayor and corporation of the ancient
borough of Walton. In 1715 the passage of the Ribble was bravely defended against
the Jacobites by Parson Woods and his parishioners of Atherton.



Introduction

Church Brow Conservation Area was designated as a Conservation Area on 17 April
1985.

Church Brow Special Character and Appearance

Church Brow Conservation Area is an interesting and attractive, predominantly

residential, area set in an elevated position overlooking the River Ribble. St.
Leonardés Church is the most prominent buildin
a most prominent position at the top of the 0l
steep incline, and drops down to Victoria Road at its foot, away from St Leonar d o6 s

Church. The River Ribble lies to the north of the Conservation Area and is situated in

a wooded valley, which forms the northern boundary of the area.

There are four | i sted buildings in the Conservation
Sundial (within the churchyard), Watchhouse and South Ribble Squash Club and

Parish Rooms (former primary school). The buildings are constructed of sandstone

and appear imposing in their woodland setting. There are other interesting pleasant

unlisted buildings in the area mostly 19" Century terraced properties on Victoria

Road and at the foot of Church Brow and Kings Croft. There are two larger

residential properties with large gardens higher up on the hill and a pair of older

cottages, one of them dated 1763. The Methodist Church and White Bull Public

House are also pleasant looking buildings which contribute to the history and

character of the area.

The most attractive of the unlisted buildings in the area are:

The White Bull Public House

The Methodist Chapel

13 and 14, Church Brow cottages

The former police station, Victoria Road
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Church Brow: General Description

Church Brow Conservation Area is approximately 4.11 ha hectares in size and lies to
the south of the River Ribble as it meanders through Walton-Le-Dale.



The Conservation Area at Church Brow, Walton-le-Dale, extends upwards from the
junction of Church Brow with Victoria Road to
At the bottom of the hill the buildings are grouped together except the Methodist

Church and School, White Bull Public House and former Police Station, which is now

residential. Higher up the hill the character of the area changes and becomes

dominated by trees and by the tower of the Church of St. Leonard. The woodland on

the north side of Church Brow covers the steep slope down to the river bank. Much

of the woodland is protected by a Tree Preservation Order.

St . Leonardodéds Parish Church

St . Leonarddés Church is a Grade | 1* Listed b
Walton. The church is constructed of sandstone. The Ribble valley falls very steeply

away to the north, and the sheltered village and town fields along the Darwen to the

south. Prior to the construction of Higher Walton Road in the early 19" Century, the

church lay on the line of the main road both into Blackburn and Yorkshire.

St . Leonardbébs Church is | ate Medieval (t ower
restored in 1864 and the rest 1902-06 by John Pollard Seddon.

In common with the neighbouring parishes, little of the pre-Reformation building
survives away from the chancel and the tower. The nave or body of the church has
been rebuilt on a number of occasions. It was rebuilt in 1503, and in 1798 was pulled
down; transepts were added in 1816, with further work undertaken in 1855, before a
very extensive re-build in 1906.
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St Leonar 65 Chu c and graveyard
The millstone grit chancel is the oldest surviving part of the present building. Small
and quite low, it measures 27 inches by 18 inches, with the south side containing the
remains of an Early English doorway, which Pevsner dates to the 13™ Century.
Historically, it belonged to the Assheton of Cuerdale and Hoghton families, and
contains a number of interesting memorials to several of their members.

The church tower stands 66 foot high, has three storeys, and measures 13 square
foot in internal plan. Like the chancel it is constructed of millstone grit, which was
very likely sourced locally. The corner buttresses are very pronounced, reaching up
to 50 feet, and give the tower a great impression of strength. The tower may date to
the late 15" Century/early 16th Century, when there was considerable interest locally
in tower building.



St . Leonardds Parish Church

Back in 1522 the tower possessed four bells. In 1761, a peal of six bells replaced
these. Repairs were carried out in 1832 and in 1947 two further bells were added,

taking the total to eight.
St . Leonardbdés Churchyard

The churchyard is situated to the north, south and east of the church. Up to the 19th
Century virtually all local people, Protestant or Catholic, were interred in the ancient
churchyard.

St.Leonar dd6s Churchyard

St . Leonardodés Pari sh Rooms

The building is a Grade Il listed building and was formerly a school (built in 1835).
The building has been substantially altered internally and extended to the rear as a
squash club. The Parish rooms are located to the west of the church and
constructed of tooled pink sandstone blocks, slate roof with a gabled chimney
composed of four octagonal flues.



Parish Rooms

Watchhouse
The Watchhouse, dated 1835 is located approximately 50 metres east of the church

of St. Leonard. It is a Grade Il Listed Building constructed of dressed stone. The
rear wall has a semi-circular doorway with a key stone dated 1835.

St . Leonardds Watchouse

Historical Development
The historical development of Walton-le-Dale can be summarised as follows:

1 Medieval times: predominantly agricultural land with the majority of land being
in the share of the lord of the manor and part of the Walton Hall and Hoghton
Estates;

f  Up until the late 18" Century: agriculture was the principal activity in the
district, and the pattern of settlement was closely related to the local types of
soil (alluvial soils were rich arable farmlands)

f  From early 18" Century onwards: growth of the local textile trade and many
houses had loom shops or weaving cellars.












































































































